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Exptanatory Foreword

Introduction

The Joint Committee's financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2011 is as set out in the
Comprehensive tncome and Expenditure Statement and it's financial position is as set oul in the Balance
Sheet and Cash Flow Statement,

These financial slatements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11 (the Code} and the Department of lhe Environment Accounis
Direction, Circular LG 11/11 dated 20 May 2011. [t is the purpose of this foreword to explain, in an easily
understandable way Ihe financial facls in relation to the Joint Committee. Comparative figures have been re-
stated where neccessary 1o take account of changes in accounting requirements as a result of the
introduction of the Code.

This Statement of Accounts explains the Joint Committee’s finances during 1he financial year 2010/11 and its
financial position at the end of that year. It follows approved accounting standards and is necessarily
techinical in parls.

Group Accounts

The Code reguires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of group financial
statemenls where they have malerial interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. The North Wesl
Region Waste Management Group does not have material interests in such bodies and accordingly is not
required {o prepare group financial statements.

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 16, shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the
Joint Committee, analysed into ‘'usable reserves' {i.e. (hose that can be applied to fund expenditure) and
other reserves. The 'Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of
providing the Joint Committee's services, more details of which are shown in Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The 'Nel increase /Decrease before transfers to earmarked reserves’ line shows the
Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from
statutory angd other reserves undertaken by the Joinl Committee.

The Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as sel out on page 17, shows the income earned and expenditure incurred during the year
by the Joint Commiltee in accordance with generally accepled accounting practices.

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheel, as set out on page 18, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the Joint
Committee's assets and liabilities. The nel assets of the Joint Committee (assels less liabilities) are matched
by the reserves held by the Jeint Committee. Reserves are reporled in two categories. The first category of
reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves thal the Joint Commiilee may use to provide services,
subject 1o the need 1o maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for
example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may conly be used 1o fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The
second category of reserves are those that the Joint Committee is not able to use to provide services. This
category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation
Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and
reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments
between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations”.



The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Joint Commitlee during
the reperting period. The stalerment shows how the Joint Committee generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activilies. The amounl of net cash
flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Joint
Commitlee are funded by way of granl income and Councit contributions, or from the recipienis of services
provided by the Joint Committee. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Joint Committee’s future service delivery. Cash
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of
capital {{.e. borrowing) to the Joint Committee.

Financial Report
Background

By way of background information, the North West Region Waste Management Group is a partmership of
seven Councils who have agreed to collaborate in implementing the North West Regional Waste
Management Plan, and seek to develop an integrated network of regional waste management facilities which
would be cost effective for the public. To this end the member Councils have established an unincorporated
Joint Committee under the Local Government Act {(Northern (reland) 1972 (as amended). Derry City Council
has agreed to act as “Lead Council" for the signing of any eventual contract for final contract purposes, and
the Partners of the Joint Committee will put in place back to back contracling arrangements as will be
neccessary to ensure that the "Lead Council" is suitably indemnified in it's role as "Lead Council".

The seven participant Councils are as lisied in Note 29 on Relaled Party Transactions. Each Council is
represenied by 2 Councillors on the Group, and Chief Executives and Technical Directors of the member
Councils have rights of attendance ot meetings of the Joint Committee, and act as advisors to the Group.
The Group intends to utilise the above model for the delivery of the residual waste infrastructure project for
the North West Region.

The financial administration is managed through the "Lead Council*, Derry City Council, which provides
support services to the Group as and when required. The Group dees not have it's own Bank Account, but
operates under a dedicated Cost Centre within Derry City Council's financial system. Derry City Council
recoups expenditure from member Council's on a quarterly basis in arrears and also invoices the Department
of the Environment for grants due on expenditure. Staff woking for the Group are employed by Darry City
Council.

Financial information

The Joint Committee incurred expenditure of £828,230 during the financial year 2010/2011, all of which has
been recouped efther by way of grants from Central Government or from the seven participating Councils.
The majority of this expenditure has been incurred cn initial costs for developing a Waste Management Plan
and the early slages of tendering for a Materials Recovery Facility for the Group.

There was no expenditure on Capita! projects during 2010/2011.

Annual Governance Statement

Because the Joint Commitiee has so far operated as an area of Derry City Councll, it has relied mainly on the
internal controls and procedures that exist within the Council for it's governance. For this reason a summary
of Derry City Council's own Governance Statement has been included in the Accounts of the Joint
Committee to demonsirate what controls are in place. It is the intention of the Joinl Commiltee as the Group
develops to put in place it's own governance arrangements, and not to rely solely on those that exist for
Derry City Council.



Statement of the Joint Committee’s and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities for
the Statement of Accounts

The Joint Committee’s Responsibilities
Under Section 54 of the Local Government Acl (Northern Ireland) 1972 the Joint Committee shall make safe
and efficient arrangements for the receipt of money paid to it and the issue of money payable by it, and those

arrangements shall be carried out under the supervision of such officer of ihe Joint Committee as the Joint
Committee designates as ils Chief Financial Officer.

Under Regulation 5 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulalions (Nerthern Ireland) 2006 the
Joint Commitlee is required by resolution to approve the accounts.

These accounts were approved by the Joint Committee on 27th June 2011.

The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities
Under Regulation 4(1} of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland)} 2006,

the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Joint Committee’s Statement of Accounts
in the form directed by the Department of the Environment.

The accounts musl give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial
year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financiat officer is required to:

s observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department of the Environment including
compliance with the Code of Praclice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom

° follow relevant accounling and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting policies on
a consistent basis, and

° make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:
° keep proper accounting records 1hat are up-to-date, ang

. take reascnable steps for the prevention and delection of fraud and cther irregularities.



North West Region Waste Manaement Group
Annuai Governance Statement 2010 ~ 2011

Scope of Responsibility

The North West Region Waste Management Group is responsible for ensuring that ils business is conducted
in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under Local
Gavernment (Best Value} Act (Northern Ireland)} 2002 to make arrangerments for continuous improvement in
the way in which iis funcfions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

In discharging this averall responsibility, the Groeup was responsible for putting in place proper arrangements
for the governance of ils affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes
arrangements for the management of risk.

The Group is required to prepare an Annual Governance Statement which is consistent with the principles of
the CIPFA / SOLACE Framewerk Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. This statement
explains how the Council has complied with this, their statutery dulies under the 2005 Order and also meets
the requirements of Regulation 2A of the Loca!l Governmenl Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations
(Northern Ireland 2006} in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control.

Because the Joint Committee has so far operated as an area of Derry Cily Council, it has relied mainly on the
internal controls and procedures that exist within the Council for it's governance. For this reason a summary
of Derry City Council's own Governance Stalement has been included in the Accounts of the Joint
Committee to demenstrale what controls are in place. it is the intention of the Joint Committee as the Group
develops to put in place it's own governance arrangements, and not to rely solely on those that exist for
Derry City Council.

The purpose of the governance framework

Derry City Council's governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values,
by which the authority is directed and controlied and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with
and leads the communily. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its stralegic objectives and lo
consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a
reascnable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve pelicies, aims and objectives and can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to ihe achievement of
Derry City Council's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and
lhe impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economicatly.

In 2007 CIPFA revised its corporate governance guidance and published the joint CIPFA/SOLACE
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A Framework." This requires the publication of an
Annual Gavernance Statement on an ongoing basis. As a result of the revised proper practice requirements,
Local Authorities prepared an Annual Governance Statement for the first time in 2007/2008.

Derry Cily Council is pleased to report compliance with the requirements of the Annual Governance
Statement for 2010/2011,



The Governance Framework

1. Identifying and communicating the Council’s vision of its purpose and intended outcomes for
citizens and service users.

Derry City Council published a Corporate Plan for the period 2008/2009, identifying the Council's vision of its
purpose and intended outcomes for citizens and service users.

Copies of the drafl Corporate Plan were made available in hardcopy, on the website, via email and as
presentations during the consultation process. The final document is currently available to the public {and
any other interesled parties) at Council facilities, via the Council's website and on request. A summary
version of the Corporate Plan is also currenlly available in hard copy or via (he website.

Delivery of the Corporate Plan is reviewed annually via Departimental Reports and an Annual Report was
prepared reflecling progress against the strategic priority areas identified in the Corporate Plan. All of these
documents are available publicly via ihe website. Departmental Plans for 2010/2011 were also prepared
which provided details of the intended actions for the year ahead, again in the context of the strategic
objectives set out in the Corporate Plan,

Qutcome / achievement information is also provided each quarer to the public via Quarterly Corporate
Review Reports, which provide details on a range of performance indicators.,

As part of the preparations for the Review of Public Administration, it had been intended to develop a Joint
Interim Corporate and Performance Plan for the two Councils of Derry and Strabane Districl. It was also
envisaged that this joint approach would complement the current Future Search / Regeneration Planning
process which is ongoing in the two Council areas. Due to lack of clarity / uncertainty on the RPA process,
work has not been progressed on ihe joint appreach until the RPA implementation is confirmed.

Work has commenced on developing a new Corporate Plan for Derry City Council for 2011-2015. 1t is
planned that a draft Corporate Plan will be developed by September 2011,

Derry City Council has a specific communication plan for ihe rates information and a dedicated website to
support this, In addition to this, the Council provides a daily media service for updaling the public on
corporate initiatives and achievements.

2. Reviewing the authority's vision and its implications for the authorlty’s governance arrangements.

The Council’'s vision, as detailed in the Corporate Plan, and its implications for governance arrangements is
reviewed as part of the Corporate Plan review process. [n addition to this the implications of the Council's
vision on governance arrangements is continvousty monitored and reported on via the Risk Management
Process.

The impact of RPA and guidance issued by the DOE means that lhe new vision will be for the new Derry /
Strabane Council. Work has been completed on developing a vision and objectives for the new Council area
through the voluntary Transition Committee. This new vision was to inform the development of a Joint
Interim Corporate and Performance Plan for the new Council, however due to uncertainty regarding RPA,
work on the joint approach was nol taken forward and it was agreed that, subject io RPA developments that
a new Corporate Plan for Derry City Council would be prepared for 2014-2015 to coincide with the eiection of
a new Council.

3. Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in accordance with the
authority's objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of resources.

Market research is carried out in relation to a number of evenls organised and delivered by the Council. The
purpose of this research is io measure the quality of services deliverad for users and ensure that services
are delivered in accordance with Derry City Councit's objectives and represent the best use of resources.
The results of this research are used to inform the marketing campaigns for the next year.



Derry City Council has published a Custorner Service Charter, setting out the standards of customer service
the public can expect when contacling the Council. In addition to this, a procedure has been developed and
published in relation to making comments, compliments or complainis.

Service delivery is monilored on a quarterly basis via Quarterly Corporate Review reports to the Policy &
Resources Committee. Delivery against the Strategic Objectives set oul in the Corporate Plan are monilored
via the Departmental and Annual Reports. This year, the Equality Impact Assessment Process added
another level of public scrutiny to how the Council uses its resources.

The Council has undertaken customer surveys for events and leisure services to assist with assessing
customer satisfaction and profile. In addition to this mystery shopper surveys were also undertaken for the
Tower Museum, Events and Guildhall Service.

4. Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, non-executive, scrutiny
and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective communication.

Proposais to document the roles and responsibilities of Elacted Members were included in the City Secretary
& Solicitor's Departmental Plan for 2008/2009. Work did commence on these proposals; however
Government announcements in relation to the implementation of the Reform of Local Government, on foot of
the Review of Public Administration, overtook during 2008/2009. Accordingly such proposals were deferred
for inclusion in {he work plan of the Transitional Committee and Transitional Management Team and this has
peen done. This area is continuously under review in light of the continuing delay, al Northern Ireland
Government level, in implementing the Reform of Local Government.

A Code of Governance was developed for the Council for the year 2010/2011, based on the six principles sel
out in the CIPFA/SOLACE 'Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A Framework.'

Terms of Reference have been documenled and approved for the Audit Committee, detailing their scrutiny
function.

Job descriptions and job specifications have been developed for all Senior Manager roles, which clearly
define and document 1he roles and responsibilities of officers.

Organisation Charts are in place in each Departmeni, showing clear delegation arrangernents. Each
department has their own arrangements in place for effective communication e.g. departmental meetings,
Senior Manager meetings etc...

The Corporate Management Team meet regularly and Corporate Team Briefings are issued to all staff
advising them of the issues being discussed by the Corporate Management Team.

5. Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of
behaviour for members and staff.

Codes of Conduct exist in relation to Members through the generic Code of Northern Ireland Local
Government Conduct. A councillor, by law, cannot take up office as a councillor untess they have confirmed
in writing that they have read the Code and agree to abide by its terms. This has been supplemented or
developed in Derry City Council by the adoption of a Prolocol to the Code. This area will be the subject of
radical new legislation in anticipation of the new Councils to come inte operation.

All employees have a Contracl of Employment and all Contracts include a Code of Conduct, which must be
followed.



6. Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a scheme of delegation
and supporting procedure notes / manuals, which clearly define how decisions are taken and the
processes and controls required to manage risks.

Proposals to carry out a revision of Standing Orders and lo draw up a formal Scheme of Delegation were
included within the City Secretary & Solicitor's Departmental Plan for 2008/2009. Wark did commence on
these proposals; however Government announcements in relation to the implementation of the Reform of
Local Government, on fool of the Review of Public Administration, avertook during 2008/2008. Accordingty
such propesals were deferred for inclusion in the work plan ¢f the Transitional Committee and Transilional
Management Team and this has been done.

The system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information,
financial regulations, administrative procedures {including segregation of duties), management supervision
and a system of delegation and accountability. Development angd maintenance of the system is undertaken
by managers within the Council. In particular, the system includes:

a Budgetary Control Procedures;

a Credit Control Procedures;

a Treasury Management Procedures;

o Procedure for the Purchase of Supplies & Services;
o Risk Management Stralegy;

a Corporate ang Budgetary Planning;

o Preparation of relevanl regular financial reports; and

o Regular reviews of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial performance.

Continued effort has been pui into developing and implementing the key elements of an assurance
framework within Derry City Council with the key elements being:

o A process whereby Chief Officers are reguired to sign Annual Assurance Statements.

o Embedding Risk Management.

o Further developing the professionalism of the Internal Audit & Risk Services Section, including the
implementation of risk based auditing.

o Review and update of the Code of Governance.

7. Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit Committees -
Practical Guidance for Local Authorities.

The Council has an Audit Commitiee in place since 2004. Six elected members and two independent
advisors sit on the Audit Commitiee. All meetings are attended by the Town Clerk & Chief Executive, the
City Treasurer and the Head of Internal Audit & Risk Services. External Audit are inviled to attend all
meetings. The following meelings look place in 2010/201+4:

28" April 2010 (inquorate meeting — rescheduted 25" May)
23" July 2010 (inquorate meeting — rescheduled 1*' Sept)
27" October 2010 {inquorate meeting — rescheduled 16" Nov)

26" January 2011 (meeting postponed due to death of retired Councillor — rescheduled 4 February 2011)



Audil Committee Terms of Reference have been documenled and approved by the Commitiee. The terms of
reference sel out a clear statement of purpose that it will provide an independent assurance on the adequacy
of the Council's risk management framework and associated control environment. it will provide an
independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it exposes it
to risk and weakens the control environment.

8. Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures, and
that expenditure is lawful.

Internai Audit and Risk Services have taken the lead on risk management activities within the Council.
These have continued in line with the Council's Risk Management Strategy. Activities have focused on the
development, management, monitoring and reporting of risk registers,

Managers are aware of their responsibility for ensuring;

o Compliance with relevant laws and regulations, inlernal policies and procedures.
a That expenditure is lawfu! within their area of responsibility.

o That staff conduct council business in accordance with the law and proper standards.
o That public money, for which they are responsible, is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used
economically, efficiently and effectively.

The City Secretary & Solicitor, in his capacity as the Council’s legal advisor, ensures compliance with
refevant laws and regulations; and the Cily Treasurer is the designated Officer responsible for the proper
administration of the Council's financial affairs,

In addition {o this when carrying cut audits, Internal Audit will ensure thal relevant laws and regulations,
internal policies and procedures are in place and adhered to, and that expenditure is lawful.

A Strategic Audit Plan is in place covering the period 2010 — 2013 and covers all Council Areas. Year 1 of
the Strategic Audit Plan was delivered in 2010/2011. Internal Audit & Risk Services use a system of Risk
Based Auditing and all high-risk areas are audited as a matter of priority.

9. Whistleblowing and for receiving and investigating complaints from the public.

Derry City Council's Whistleblowing Policy was documented and considered by the Audit Committee in April
2008 and approved by the Policy & Resources Committee in June 2008. The Policy has been
communicated to all staff and is posted on the Council’s Intranet,

The Council has a Customer Service Charter, which sets the standards of customer service the public can
expect when contacting the Council. There is also a procedure in relation to making comments, compliments
or complaints.

10. ldentifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to their strategic
roles, supported by appropriate training.

The Members' Services function in the City Secretary & Solicitor's Department is responsible for identifying
the development needs of members in relation to their strategic roles and subsequently organising
appropriate {raining.



In relaticn lo Senior Officers, the Council has achieved Investors in Pecple in Leisure Services and looks 1o
ensure that Indicators within the Framework are implemented across the Council with the view to achieving
Invesiors in People as one organisation following RPA. Further, there is a larget 10 have Perscnal
Development Plans in place for all employees. This process is currenlly ongoing.

in addition to this, there is also a reaclive approach lo training as training needs are idenlified by Senior
Officers in relation to their sirategic role.

The Council offers support through the post entry-training scheme lo any officer who wishes to pursue a third
level qualification to support their role. In additicn to this, the annual ongoing quarterly training programme,
deveioped by the Local Government Training Group and In House staff, is offered to all staff.

11. Establishing clear ¢channels of communication with all sections of the community and other
stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation.

The following controls are in place to establish clear channels of communications with all sections of the
community and other stakeholders to ensure accountabilily and encourage open consultation:

a The Council's website found at www.derrycity.gov.uk
o An audit of data collection and consultalion methods for Councit was completed.
o Database development for community services and business & cultural organisations.

o Specialist interest database for events and iniliatives.

a Service / issue specific engagement including Strategy Board (regeneration), Tourism Sector Groups
(Tourism), Branding (Image & Marketing), Event Planning Group (Safety & Events), Civic Alcohol Forum,
Airport Transport Users Group, Equality Forum and Consultee lisling.

o Media database for local, regional and RCI media.

2 Regular e-zine programme of informaticen for database groupings.
o Web development programme to enhance engagement and information.

2 Equality forum and consultation list.
o Elected Members.

o Council meetings are open lo the public.
a The Assurance Framework.

Review of effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness within Derry City
Council has been informed by the work of the executive managers within the Council who have responsibility
for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit's annual
report and by comments made by the external auditors and other external reviews.

The procedure applied in mainlaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework included
the foliowing:

1.Members
A Committee Structure is in place within Councit consisting of the following:

« Policy & Resources Commitlee

« Development Committee

« Environmental Services (Licensing) Committee
« Environmental Services Commitiee

« Staff Committee

« City of Derry Airport Committee

+ Planning Committee

« Regional Services Committee

+  Audit Commitiee
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2.Senior Officers
Chief Officers completed an Annual Assurance Statement for 2010/2011 for their Department. In signing the

Assurance from the relevant Depariment’'s management team.

Corporate and Departmental Business Plans including Key Performance Indicators.
Service Risk Registers.

Operational policies and procedures.

Regular management and moenitoring information.

Internal and external audit reports.

Administrative procedures (including segregation of duties).

Management supervision.

A syslem of delegation and accountability.

A number of significant control issues were identified in the Chief Officer's Assurance Statements as needing
improvement; however action plans have been developed to address the issues during 2011/2012.

3. The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is due to meet four times throughout the year, and mel on the following dates during
2010/2011:

28" April 2010 (inquorate meeting — rescheduled 25" May)
23" July 2010 (inquorate meeting — rescheduled 1% Sept)
27" October 2010 {inquorate meeting — rescheduled 16™ Nov}

26" January 2011 (meeting postponed due to death of retired Councillor — rescheduled 4" February 2011)

4.internal Audit

In preparing the overall audit opinion the Head of Internal Audit & Risk Services reviewed all audit and risk
activity carried out in the period April 2010 to March 2011 and placed some reliance on the work carried out
by External Audit. The general level of control remains at satisfactory; however internal Audit's work during
2010/2011 resutted in Limited Assurance ratings being provided in relation to Human Resources Policies &
Procedures, Parks Programming, Corporate Health & Safety, Management of 3" Parties and Templemore
Sports Complex. In addition to this Payments to Waste Management Contractors received an unacceptable
assurance rating, However in all areas concerned, Internal Audit's recommendations have been agreed with
Senior Managemeni, improvement plans have been drawn up and priority actions are required to be
implemented within defined timescales. In addition to this, there are a number of high scoring risks facing
the Council at 31% March 2011; however these are being continuously monitored and reviewed by Internal
Audit & Risk Services.

5. Other explicit review / assurance mechanisms

Risk Management is embedded across all the aclivities of Council and is a cenlinuous evolving process,
which is monitored closely by Internal Audit & Risk Services. Risk Registers are in place for all Service
Areas within the Council and a comprehensive database is maintained for managing risks and action plans.
Risk Management Reports are presented quarterly to the Corporate Management Team and the Audit
Committee.

Internal Audit & Risk Services was commissioned during 2010/2011 {o deliver the Interna! Audil and Risk
Management Service to CODA Operations Ltd. All work carried out at CODA Operations Ltd is presented to
their Audil, Finance & Risk Committee quarterly.

External funding received throughout the year is subject to independent audits from the relevant funders i.e.
Europe, Government Departments, SEUPE etc. .
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Work carried out by the Local Governmenl Auditor during 2010/2011 is also used by the Council as an
additional assurance mechanism.

We have been advised on the implications of the resull of ihe review of the effectiveness of the governance
framework by the Audit Commitiee, and a plan o address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement
of the systems is in place.

There are no significant Governance Issues that affect the North West Region Waste Management Group
Joint Committee

/ )
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On behalf of the Joint Committee of lhe North West Region Waste Management Group.
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| certify that:

(a) the Staterment of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2011 on pages 16 to 66 has been
prepared in the form directed by the Department of the Environment and under the accounting
policies set out on pages 20 to 31.

(b} in my opinion the Statermenl of Accounts give a lrue and fair view of the income and expenditure
and cash flows for lhe financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

G —

Joint Committee Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Joint Commitlee on 27th June 2011,
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Independent auditor’s report to the Members of the North West Region Waste
Management Group

| have audited the statement of accounts of the North West Region Waste Management
Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 under the Local Government (Northern
Ireland) Order 2005. The statement of accounts comprises the Movement in Reserves
Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash
Flow Statement and related notes. The statement of accounts has been prepared under
the accounting policies set out within them.

This report is made solely to the Members of the North West Region Waste
Management Group in accordance with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order
2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in the Statement of Responsibilities issued
by the Chief Local Government Auditor.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and the independent auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Joint Committee’s and Chief Financial
Officer's Responsibilities, the Chief Financial Officer designated by the Joint Committee
is responsible for the preparation of the statement of accounts and for being satisfied
that it gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the
financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year. My
responsibility is to audit the statement of accounts in accordance with the Local
Government {(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit
Practice issued by the Chief Local Government Auditor. | conducted my audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards
require me and my staff to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards
for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the statement of accounts

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the statement of accounts are
free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the North West
Region Waste Management Group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the North West Region Waste Management Group; and the overall presentation of
the statement of accounts. In addition | read all the financial and non financial
information in the Foreword to identify material inconsistencies with the audited
statement of accounts. If | become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies | consider the implications for my report.

14



Opinion

In my opinion the statement of accounts gives a true and fair view, in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010-11, the financial position of the North West
Region Waste Management Group as at 31 March 2011and its income and expenditure
for the year then ended.

Matters on which | report by exception
| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if, in my
opinion:

o the Annual Governance statement:

o does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010-11,

o does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department of the
Environment,

o s misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my
audit, or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
» the statement of accounts is not in agreement with the accounting records; or

» | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit.

Certificate

| certify that | have completed the audit of the accounts of the North West Region Waste
Management Group in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice issued
by the Chief Local Government Auditor.

-

Louise Mason

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

2% Qctober 2011
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2011

INCOME

Participating Councils
Government Grant

Financing and Invesimenl Income
Other Income

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURE

Employee Costs

Financing and Investment Expenditure
Other Operating Costs

Cther Costs

TOTAL EXPENDHTURE

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) ON CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Surplus/(Deficil) on Disconlinued Operations

SURPLUS / {(DEFICIT) ON THE PROVISION OF SERVICES
Surplus/(Deficit) on revaluation of nen-current assets

Surplus/{Deficit) arising on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets

Actuarial gains/(losses) on pension assets/liabilities

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Notes

10a/10b

25a/25b

2010/11
£

88,412
739,818
0

0

528,230

2009110
£

B3.322
615.544
o

]

61,328
0
766.902
0

698,866

528,230

¢]

66,010
0
632,856
0

698,666

0
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT
GROUP
Balance Sheet As At 31 March 2011

2010411 2005140 2008/09
Notes £ £ £
Property Planl & Equipmenl (PPAE) 10a/10b 0 0 0
Land & Buildings 10a/tob 0 0 1]
Infrastruciure Assels 10a/10b 0 0 0
Landill Sile 10a/10b 0 0 0
Vehicles, Plant, Furnilure and Equipmenl 108/10b 0 0 0
Community Assets 10a/10b 0 0 0
PP&E under Canstruction 10a/10b 0 0 0
Surplus Assets 10a/10b 0 0 o]
Invesimenl Properties 10a/ttb 0 0 0
Inlangible Assels 18a/10b 0 0 0
Assets Held for Sale fod 0 0 0
Long Term Invesiments 15a 0 0 0
Invesimenl in Asseciates and Joinl Venlures 0 0 0
Long Term Deblors 142 0 0 0
LONG TERM ASSETS 0 0 0
[
Short Term Inveslments 15b/24a Q 0 0
Inveriories 13 0 0
Short Term Deblors 14b 393,409 442,071 313,009
Cash and Cash Equivalents 24b 0 0 0
Assels Held Tor Sale 1od a 0 0
CURRENT ASSETS 303,409 442,071 313.099
Bank Overdrafl 0 0 0
Short Term Bomowing 16a 0 0 0
Short Term Creditors 17a 393,409 442,071 313,099
Provisions 18 0 0 0
Liabilities in Disposal Groups O 0 0
|CURRENT LIABILITIES 393.409 442,071 313,089
Loang Term Creditors 17b 0 0 0
Provisions 18 1] 0 o]
Long Term Barrowing 16b 0 0 0
Otner Long Term Liabililies 5,26 4] 0 0
Conaled Assets Account 21 0 0 0
Capital Granls Receipts in Advance 22 0 0 0
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 0 0 4]
NET ASSETS 0 0 0
USABLE RESERVES 25a/25b 0 0 4]
Capital Receipls Reserve CRR 25a/25b 0 0 0
Capilal Grants Unapplied Accounl Other 25a/25b 4] 0 o]
Capital Fund Slalulory 25a/25b 0 0 0
Renewal and Repairs Fund Slatutory 25a/25b 0 0 0
Other Balances and Reserves Other 25a/15b 0 0 0
General Reserves Gen Res 25a/25b 0 0 0
UNUSABLE RESERVES 25a/25b o] 0 0
Capital Adjustment Account 25a/26b 0 0 0
Financial Instruments Adjusimenl Accounl 25a/25b 0 0 0
Revaluation Reserve 25a/25b 0 0 0
Availabie for Sale Finangial Instrumenis Reserve 25a/25b 0 0 0
Pensions Reserve 25a/25b 0 0 0
Capital Receipts Deferred Accourd 25a/25b 0 0 0
Accumulated Absences Account 258/25b 3} 0 0
MET WORTH 0 0 0|
Difference 0 0 0
CHANGE N NET WORTH 0 ]
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT
GRGUP
Cash Flow Statement at 31 March 2011

Notes

Net surpius / (deficit) on the provision of services

Adjustment to surplus cr deficit on the provision of
services for noncash movemenls

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficil
on the provision of services that are investing and
financing activities

Net cash flows from operating activities 24a), 24c)
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 24d)
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 24g)

Net increase or decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements

1A

Accounting Policies
General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Joint Committee’s transactions for the 2010/11 financial
year and its position al the year-end of 31 March 2011. The Joint Commitiee is required to prepare
an annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Depariment of the Environment in
accordance with regulations 4 (1} and (2) in the Local Governmen! (Accounts and Audit) Regulations
(Morthern Ireland) 2006 in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11 and the
Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2010/11, supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principaliy
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assels and financial
instruments. The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11
also requires disclosure in respect of;

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Accruals of Income and Expenditure

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Joint Committee transfers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefils or service
potential associated with the transaclion will flow to lhe Joint Committee.

- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Joint Committee can measure
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefils or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Joint Commitiee.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between
the date supplies are received and their consumption, lhey are carried as inventories on the Balance
Sheet.

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded
as expenditure when the services are received rather than when paymenis are made.

- Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis of the
effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrumeni rather than the cash flows fixed or
defermined by the contract.

- Where revenue and expendilure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that
debts will be settled, the balance of deblors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the
income that might not be collected.

ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial instilutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not mere than 24 hours. Cash equivalanls are investments thal mature in
[specified period, no mere than (hree months] or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash Flow
Statementi, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Joint Committee’s cash management. Bank overdrafts are
shown within current liabilities on the balance sheet.
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iii) Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Joint Commitiee a possible
assel whose existence will only be confirmed by the cccurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Joint Committee. Contingent assets are not recognised in
the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a nole to the accounts where it is probabie that there will be an
inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

iv) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Joint Committee a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or ctherwise of
uncerain future events not wholly within the controt of the Joint Committee. Contingent liabilities
also anse in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
reliably. Centingent hiabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts.

v) Discontinued Operations

Additional policy detail required where a Joint Committee has discontinued operations (or transferred
operations under machinery of government arrangements) during the financial year.

vi) Employee Benefits

Short-term empioyee benefits payable during empleyment, such as wages and salaries, paid
annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current
employees, are recognised as an expense in the year in which empioyees render service to the
Joint Committee. No accrual is made for the cost of holiday entifiements earmned by employees but
not taken before the year-end and which employees can carry forward into the next financial year as
the Employees are deemed lo be employees of Derry Cily City Council.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payabie as a result of a decision by the Joint Committee to
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision te
accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement when the Jaint Committee is demonstrably committed to the termination
of the employment of an officer or group of officers.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the
General Reserves balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Joinf Committee to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credils for pension enhancement
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and
pensioners and any such amounis payabie but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Joint Committee are members of the NILGOSC Pension Fund. The scheme
provides defined benefits to members (relirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees
worked for the Joint Commitlee. Beacuse the Employees are employed by Derry Cily Council the
scheme is effeclively treated as a Defined Contribution Scheme by the Joint Committee as the share
of Pension Assets/Liabilties and Service Costs/Gains is deemed to lie with Derry City Council.
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vii) Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that cccur
between the end of the reporting period and ihe date when the Statemen! of Accounts is authorised
for issue. Two lypes of events can be identified:;

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting pericd — the Statement of
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, bul where a category of evenls would have a
material effecl disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated
financial effect.

The financial statements may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are authorised for
issue, This date will be recorded on the financial statements and is usually the date the Local
Government Auditor issues his certificate and opinion. Where material adjustments are made in this
period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounls.

viii} Exceptional ltems

—

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately,
either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the
accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Joint Committee’s
financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors {L)

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e., in the current
and future years affected by the change and do nol give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events
and conditions on the Joint Committee's financial position or financial performance. Where a
change is made, it is applied relrospectively by adjusting opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

x} Financial Instruments

Most financial instruments held by Joint Committees would fall to be classified inlo just one class of
financial liability and two classes of financial assets:

Financial Liabilities
Amortised Cosi

Financial Assets

toans and Receivables
Available for Sale
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Financial liabilities are recognised on lhe Balance Sheet when the Joint Committee becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are
carried al itheir amortised cost. Annual charges 1o the Financing and Investment Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The
effective inlerest rate is (he rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over lhe life
of the instrument to the amount al which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Joint Committee has, this means that the amount presented in
the Balance Sheel is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest
charged to the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement is ihe amount payable for the
year according to the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early setttement of borrowing are credited and debited to the
Financing and Invesiment Income or Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken
place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that invelves the modification or exchange of
existing instrumentls, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the
amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an adjusiment to the effective interast
rate.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, regulations allow the impact on ithe General Reserves Balance to be spread over fulure
years. The Joint Commitiee has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was
remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivabie when it was
repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement to the net charge required against the General Reserves Balance is managed by a
fransfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Financial Assels

Financial assets are classified inlo two types:
- loans and receivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an
active market

- available-for-sale assels — that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or
determinable payments.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivabies are recognised on the Balance Sheel when the Joint Committee becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value.
They are then measured al their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment
Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made 1o
the Financing and Investment Expenditure line in ihe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Slatement. The impairment loss is measured as lhe difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest
rate.

Any gains and losses thal arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income or Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Stalement.
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Available-for-Sale Assels

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Joint Committee becomes
a party to lhe contractual provisions of a financial inslrument and are initially measured and carried
at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual crediis te the Financing
and Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement for interest
receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset muitiplied by the effective rate of interesl for
the instrument, Where there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g., dividends) is
credited to the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Stalement when il becomes receivable by
lhe Joint Committee.

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on lhe following
principles:

- instruments with quoted market prices — the market price
- other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow analysis
- equity shares with no quoted market prices — independent appraisal of company valuations.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the gain/loss is
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for -Sale Financial Assets. The
exception is where impairment losses have been incurred — these are debited to the Financing and
Investment Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with
any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value falls
below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment
Expendilure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the assel has fixed or
determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset's original
effective interest rale. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value
against the acquisition cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation).

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investmenl Income or Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the
Available-for-Sale Reserve.

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried al cost (less any impairment
losses).

xi) Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Joint Committee has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
transaction is converted inlo sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was
effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are oulstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted
at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

xii} Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and Council contributions
and donations are recognised as due to the Joint Committee when there is reasonable assurance
that:

- the Joint Committee will comply with the condifions attached to the payments, and
- the grants or contributions will be received.
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xfii}

Xiv)

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attaching o the grant or conlribution have been satisfied. Conditions are
stipulations {hat specify that the future economic bengfils or service potential embodied in the asset
acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or
future economic benefils or service polential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and conltributions for which conditions have not been salisfied are
carrned in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is
credited to Government Grants in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to {he Comprehensive iIncome and Expenditure Statement, they
are reversed out of the General Reserves Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement, Where
the grant has yet to be used 1o finance capital expenditure, il is posied to the Capital Grants
Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account
once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assels that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the
Joint Commiftee as a result of past events {e.g. software licences) is capitalised when il is expected
that future economic benefils or service potential will flow from the intangible asse! to the Joint
Commitiee.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically
feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the Joint
Committee wiil be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being
able (o sell or use the assel. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as
attributable to the asset and restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research
expenditure is not capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended to promote or advertise the Joint Committee’'s goods or services,

Intangible assets are measured inilially at cost. Amounts are onby revalued where the fair valite of
the assets held by the Joint Committee can be determined by reference to an active markel. In
practice, no intangible asset held by the Joint Commitiee meets this criterion, and they are therefore
carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amounl of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful
life to the Comprehensive tncome and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on inlangible assels qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisalion, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact
on the General Reserves Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General
Reserves Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value, The cost
of inventories is assigned using the weighted average costing formula.
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Long Term contracis are accounted for on the basis of charging the surplus or deficit on Lhe
provision of services with the value of warks ang services received under the cantract during the
financial year.

xv} Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn renlals and/or for capital appreciation.
The definilion is nol met if lhe property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or
praduction of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the
amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s length.
Investment properties are nol depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions
al the year-end. (Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment
Income or Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemeni. The same
treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and investment
Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result in a gain for the
General Reserves Balance. Mowever, revalualion and disposal gains and losses are not permitted
by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Reserves Balance. The gains and
losses are therefore reversed out of the General Reserves Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjusiment Accounl and the Capital Receipts Reserve.

xvi} Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property from the lessor to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elemenls are considered
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return

for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of specific assets.

The Joint Commitiee as Lessee

Finance Lease.

Property, plant and equipmen{ held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value
of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the
obligation to pay ihe lessor. [nitial direct costs of the Joint Committee are added to the carrying
amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry infc a lease are applied to writing down the lease
liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

- a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease liability,
and

- a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement)
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Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease lerm il this is
shorter than the asset's estimated useful life.

The Joint Committee is not required to raise finance to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses atising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annua! provision is made from
revenue towards {he deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.
Depreciation and impairment losses are therefore replaced by a revenue provision in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, by way of an adjusting transaction with the
Capital Adjusiment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the
two.

Operating Leasss:

Renials paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or
equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not
match the patlern of payments (e.g., there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the (ease).

The Joint Committee as Lessor

Finance Leases

Where the Joint Committee grants a finance lease over a propserty or an item of plant or equipment,
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the
lease, the carrying amounl of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is writlen off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in {he
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain,
representing the Joint Committee’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on dispesal {i.e.
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease asset
(long term debtor} in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportiocned between:;

- a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the iease asset
(long term debtor) together with any premiums received, and

- finance income (credited fo the Financing and Investment Income line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Staiement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement on disposal is not
permitted by statute to increase the General Reserves Balance and will be required to be treated as
a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Reservas
Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statermnent. Where the
amount due in relation to the lease asset is {0 be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial
years, lhis is posted out of the General Reserves Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid, the element for the
charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property is used to wrile down the lease asset
(debtor}). At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Operating Leases

Where the Joint Committee grants an operaling lease over a property or an ilem of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are
made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.g., there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant
assel and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
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xvii) Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.
The asset is revaiued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value fess
costs to sell, the loss is pested to the Other Operating Expendifure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any
previously recognised losses. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. Additional policy
delail required where a Joint Committee is carrying a disposal group as an Asset Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Held for Sale, they are reclassified back lo
non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount before they were classified as Held
for Sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised
had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the
decision not to sell.

Assets thal are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets
Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, 1he carrying amount of the asset in the Balance
Sheet {whether Properly, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale} is written off to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemenl as part of the
gain or foss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e.
netted off againsi the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transfarred to the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Amounts received for a disposal are calegorised as capital receipts and credited to the Capital
Receipts Reserve. Recelipis are appropriated lo the Reserve from the General Reserves Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The writien-off value of disposals is not a charge against General Reserves, as the cost of fixed
assels is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the Generat Reserves Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

xviii} Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, for rental to others of for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during
more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognitien

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals hasis, provided thal it is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Joint Cemmittee and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to
deliver future economic benefits or service potentiat (i.e., repairs and tnaintenance) is charged as an
expense when il is incurred.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cosl, comprising:
- the purchase price
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- any costs atiribulable to bringing the asset 1o the focation and condilion necessary for it to be
capable of operaling in the manner inlended by management

- the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and rastoring the site on
which it is located

The Joint Committee does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assels are under
construction.

The cost of assels acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, uniess the
acquisition will not increase the cash flows of the Joint Commitlee . In the latter case, where the
assel is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset
given up by the Joint Committee.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is creditad to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the
donation has been made conditionally. Unti! conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated
Assels Account. Where gains are crediled to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Reserves Balance to the Capital Adjusiment
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical cost

- all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its
existing use (existing use value — EUV)

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset,
depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that
their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a
minimurn every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation
Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of 2 loss
previously charged io a senvice.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the date of
its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have heen consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as fo whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

- where lhere is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, ihe
carrying amount of the asset is writlen down against that balance {up lo the amounl of the
accumulated gains), with any excess charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure
Statement.

- where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the assel is written
down with a charge 1o the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited 1o the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation
that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

The same accounting treatment is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a general fail in asset
prices across the board as opposed to a consumption of economic benefit specific lo an asset as is
in the case of impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Properly, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation
of their depreciabie amounls over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a
determinable finite useful life (i.e., freehold land and certain Community Assets} and assets that are
not yet available for use (i.e., assels under construction).

Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:
- vehicles, plant and equipment — a percentage of the value of each class of assets in the Balance
Sheet, as advised by a suitably qualified officer

- infrastructure — straight-line allocaticn over 25 years.

Componentisalion

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the componenls are depreciated separately.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based
on their historical cost being transferred each year from lhe Revaluation Reserve to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

xix} Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Joint Committee a legal or
constructive abligation that probably requires seftiement by a transfer of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable eslimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance,
the Joint Committee may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a
settiement or ihe payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense in the Comprehensive Inceme and Expenditure Statement in
the year that the Joint Committee becormes aware of the obligation, and measured at the best
estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into
account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance
Sheet, Estimated settiements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it becomes
less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required {or a lower settlement
than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevani service.

Where some or all of the payment required to setlle a provision is expected 1o be recovered from
another party (e.q. from an insurance claim}, this is only recognised as income for the relevant
service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Joint Committee setlles the
obligation.
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xx) Reserves

The Joint Committee sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Reserves Balance
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is
incurred, it is charged against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the
General Reserves Balance in the Movement in Reserves Stalement so that there is no net charge
against General Reserves for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments and retirement benefits and do not represeni usable resources for the Joint Committee ~
these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts.

xxi) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Charges to revenue for non-current assets e.g. services, support services and trading accounts are
debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year

- depreciation attributable to the assets used by the Joint Cormnmittee

- revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the Joint Committee where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

- amortisation of intangible fixed assets.

Depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are replaced by [revenue provision] in the General
Reserves Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

xxii} Value Added Tax

All expenditure and income, irrespective of whether it is revenue or capital in nature, is shown net of
Value Added Tax, unless it is irrecoverable.

Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

There are no Accounting Standards that would affect these Financial Statements.
Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying accounting policies set out from 1A above the Joint Committee has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The
critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

- There is a degree of uncertainty about future levels of government funding. However, the Joint
Committee has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the
work of the Joint Commitiee might be hindered as a result of a reduction in funding from Central
Government, - ) ’
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE
MANAGEMENT GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Segmental Reporting Analysis - Current Year

The Jont Commitiee does not have any Segmental Reporting requirerment al this stage

(Comparauiws disclosures arg repored in Nole 2b)

Sepmental Analysis

Income/Expanditure T 4 [===T] Ragasda Tedsd
[ E kN L

lacome from participating Councils 4 0 0 ]
Goveramént grants and contnbutions o 0| 0 ]
Fees, charoes and other service Income 0 0 Q 0
Interest ard investment Income o 0 Q [
Surplus or deficit on assoclales and joint vent: b1} 0 2] ']
Total Inceme Q [ & U]
Employee expenses )] 1} Q 4
Olher service axpenses g o 0 [
Supporl service recharges 1] ] 0 1]
Depreciation, amortisayon and impaiment bl ] [ [
Interest payments 0 s} 9 0
Total Expsnditure 0 b 0 4
Other itamsz Q q 1] o
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 0 1] Q ]

Raconcilialion to Surplus / (Dellclt]) on 1hs Provision of Servicea in the Compruhenalve income and Expandilurs S latament

This recancishion shows how the hguras in the gnalyses of segmental ncoms and expardiure relats to the amourds ingluded in the Comprehensive

Het Income!(Expsndiure] in Sagments] Analysis

temas axciuded from Segmenial Analysis.
Add amounts not reported In Segmental Analysss but included m SurpluziDeficn) on
Conimumg Opsrahons in the Comprehensive income and Expendilura Stalamam

Remove amounts reportad in Segmenlal Analysis bl not included in Surptusi{Defeil) on
Caontinung Operatiens in the Comprenensve Incame and Expénditurg Slalamen|

Income and Ex

Surplus / {Deficil) on Continuing Op in Comp

Surptus or Deheil on Discentinued Dperalons

SurplusfiDaficit) tor the ysar per Comprahenslve Inceme and Expendlture Statemont

ftemis Included in Surpiua / (Defich) on Provision of Sarvices excluded from Segmental Analys(s

Reconclilation Lo Subjectiva Analysis

Amounis nol
included I Amounts Includad in
Segmantal Analysis  Fegmenial Analysls
bur ineluded In the It ool Incjuded 1
Comprehamiive  the Comprahenahe

Additional segmenty. Income and Incema and Aloceton of
rol Included In the Expendiire Expendjiurs Suppon Bence

Segmental Analysis analysix SuLamem Siatermant Rwchurges
£ £ £ i £
Income Irom paripeling Souncis 0 0 [1] o =}
Governmenl granis and contnbuiions 1} [ [ o o
Fees, cherges and other sémace income i} o ] o o
Inlerest end nvesiment mtome a ¢ 0 o a
Surplus ar dehcit on assecieles aad join| venlures o] a R [+ Q.
Tolal Income 0 o 9 0 0
Emiployes expensas o 1] Q [1} [}
Olher 5ot expenses [} o 0 Q o
Suppon sennce recherges o o 1] Q ]
Deprecwtion, amoriz8ngn and aopeumant ] 4 o [+ il
Interast payments 4 1] Q 0 0
Totat Expendlture ] o 0 [] []
Surptus or deficll on the provision ol zervices [] 0 1] [ T
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE
MANAGEMENT GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Segmental Reporting Analysis - Comparative Year

The Joinl Commitle does nol have any Segmenlal Reporling requirements al this stage.

Segmental Analysis

Income/Expenditure

Income from participating Councils
Government grants and contributions

Fees, charges and other service income
Interest and investment income

Surplus or deficit on associates and jonk venty)

o oo o0
=N ===~ =E=]

Total income

cojoooao

colscaooa

Empioyee expenses

Cther service expenses

Support service recharges

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Interest payments

S |coooco
=N =E-E=-E-N-]

Total Expenditure

=l e X== =]

o lccooc

Other items 0 0

CONTINUING OPERATIONS a 1

Reconciliation e Surplus / (Beficlt) on the Provislon of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This raconcilalicn shows how the figures in Ine analysis of segmenlel income and expendilure refale lo the ameunts includad in lhe Comprahensive

Incoma end Expenditure Stalamanl

£ [3
Net IncomeX{Expanditure) In Segmentat Analysls 0
ftermns excluded from Segmental Analysis:
Add amounts nol reporied in Segmanlal Anaiysrs out includad in SurpluskDeficit) on
Conlinuing Cperatons in tha Comprehensive Incoma and Expanditure Stalement o
Remove amounls raported in Segmenlal Analysis bul not included in SurpluskDeficil) on
Gontinuing Operations in the Comprehensive Incomes and Expendilure Slatement 0
0
Surplus / {Deficit) on Continuing Operations In Comprehensive Income and Expendlture Statement 0
Merms included in Surplus / (Deficlf) on Provision of Services exciuded from Segmental Analysis:
Surplus or Deficit on Disconlinued Operalions 0
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year per Comprehensive Income and Expendlture Statement 0
Reconclliation to Subjective Analysis
Amounts nol Amounls Included
Included in In Segmental
Segmenial Analysie  Analysls but not
bt Included in the Included In the
Additiona! Comprehenslve Compreheneive
esgmenis nol Income and Income and Allocation of
included In the Expenditure Expendture Support Service
Segmental Anatysis analysis Statement Stalemant Recharges
£ £ £ £ £
Income from participe ting Coungils 0 1} o ] 0
Government grants and conlribulions. o 0 0 o Q
Fees, charges and other service ncome 0 0 0 0 0
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 0
Surplus or deficil on associales and joint veniures 0 9 0 0 0
Tetal Income 0 0 0 1 a
£mployes expenses 0 o 0 o 0
Cther service expenses 0 0 0 o 1}
Supporl service recharges a ] 0 ] [
Depreciation, emerlisalion and (mpatrment 0 Q Q 0 0
Inleresl paymanls 0 a 0 a o]
Total Expenditure 1] [ 1] i ]
Surplus ot deficit on the provision of services [ [ [ [} [}
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations

2010/11 2010/11 200910 200910
Notes £ £ £ £
Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be
exciuded when determining the Movement on the General
Reserves Balance for the year:
Impairments (losses & reversals) of non-current assels 10a/10b 0 o]
Derecogrition {clher Ihan disposal) of non-current assets 10a/10b 0 0
Revalualion increases/decreases laken (o Surplus/Deficit on
lhe Provision of Services 10a/10b ¢ 0
10a/10b,2
Depreciaticn charged in the year on non-curren{ assets 3 0 0 0 0
Net Revenue expendilure funded from caphal under stalute 0 [t}
Careying amount of non current assels scld 0 0
Proceads from the sale of PP&E, invesiment properly and
intangible assets 23,25 0 [¥] 0 0
Difference between {finance costs calculated ¢n an accounting
basis and finance costs calculaled in accordance with statulory
requiremenis 25 0 0
Net charges made for relirement benefits in accordance with
1AS 19 20 0 0
Direct revenue financing of Capital Expenditure 11,25 Q 0
Capital Grants and Donaled Assels Receivable and Applied in
year Bb 0 0
Capital Granls Recsivable and Unapplied in year [:f4 0 0
Adiustrments in relation to Shart-term compensated absences 17 0 0
Adjustments in relalion lo Lessor Arrangernenls 0
Amounts not included in the Comprehensive income and
Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be
included when delermining the Movement on the General
Reserves Balance for the year
Loans/l.ease principal repayments during the year 25a/25b 0 0
Employers contributions payable 1o theNILGCSC Pension
Scheme and relirement benefits payabie direct o pensioners 20a 0 0
0 0
Net transfers (to)/from earmarked reserves:
2010M1] 2010/11 200910 2009110
£ £ £ £
Capital Fund
Interest 0 o
Cther 25a/25b 0 0 0 0
Renewal and Repairs Fund
Inlerest o 0
Other 25a/25b 0 Q 0 0
Other Funds and earmarked reserves
Interest ¢ 0
Other 25a/25b 0 A 0 Y]
0 0
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Operating Income and Expenditure
External Audit Fees
The Joint Committee has incurred the following costs relating to the

annual audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims
and other services provided by the Joint Committee's external auditors.

2010/11 2009/10

£ £

External Audit Fees 5,000 0
Grant Claim Certification Fees 0 0
Other Fees 0 0
5,000 0

There were no other fees payable in respect of any other services
provided by the appointed auditor over and above those described
above (2009/10 E£NIL).
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Operating Income and Expenditure (Continued)

Operating and Finance Leases

Joint Commitiee as Lessor:

Finance Leases (Joint Committee as lessor}

The Jainl Commitiee does nol have any Finance Lenses as a Ll essor.

2011 2010

£ £
Long Term Debtors
Finance leases-gross receivables 0 0
Less-Uneamed finance income Q 0
Less-Unguaranteed residual value of 0 0
property ]
Nel present value 0 0
[Short Term Debtors
[Finance leases-gross receivables 0 0
Less-Uneamed finance income 0 0
Less-Unguaranteed residual value of
property 1} 0
Nel present value 0 0|
Gross receivables from finance
leases
No later than 1 year 0 0
Later than 1 year and no later than 5
years 0 0
Lzater than 5 years 0 0
Total gross receivables 0 g
Less-Uneamed future finance income on
finance leases 1] 0
Less-Ungueranteed residual value of
property 0 ¢
Net investment in finance leases 0 [
The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as follows:
[ 2041 2010
[ £
No {ater than 1 year 0 0
Later than 1 year ang no later than & 0 o

ears

Later than § years 0] 0
Total gross receivables o] o)

Operating Leases (Joinl Committee as lessor)

The Joint Commitlee does nol have any Operating Leases as a Lessor.

2011 2010
Land and Vehicles, plant Land and | Vehicles, plant
buildings and equipment buildings ! and equipment
£ £ £ £
Minimum lease rentals receivable:
No Jater than 1 year 0 0 0 1]
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 0 0 0 0
\_vears
Later than & years 0 0 a 0
0 1] 0 Q
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2011 2010
Land and Vehicles, plant Land and | Vehicles, plant
buildings and equipment buildings |and eguipment
£ £ £ £
Cost 1] 0] 0 0
Accumulaled depreciation and ¢ ¥ 0 0
limpairments al 1 Apni
Deprecialion charge for the yvear 0 1] 0 0
impairments 0 0 Y o]
9 _ 0 4] 0
Joint Committee as Lessee:
Finance Leases (Joint Committae as lessee}
The Joint Committee does nel heve any Finances Leases as a leasee,
Within 1 year 1 {0 5 years After 5 years Total
£ £ £ £
201041
Finance leases paymenis 0 0 0 i}
Less: finance charges 0 0 0 0
[Net present value 0 0 1] 0
2009/10
Finance leasaes payments 0 0 0 Q
Less: finance charges 0 0 4] 0
Net present value ] ] 0 4]
[2008/08
[Finance leases payments 0 0 0 0
[Less: finance charges 0 0 0 0
Wel‘ present value 1] 0 1} 0
Included in the Balance Sheel as:
2011 2010 2009
£ £ £
Current liablities 0 0 ]
Long term liabilitie s 0 0 0
0 0 0]
Operating Leases {Joint Committee as lessee)
The Joint Commitlee does not have any Cperating Leeses as a lesses.
The expendrture charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statemenl during the year in refation lo lhese leases was:
201011 200910
Land and Vehicles, plant Land and | Vehicles, plant
buildings and equipment buildings and equipment
£ £ £ £
Minimum lease payments 8] 0 [¥] 0
Conlingeni rentals 0 0 0 0
Less: Sublease payments receivable 0 0 0 0
—
0 0l
The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable cperating
leases in future years are sel out below:;
[ 2011 2010
Land and Vehicles, plant Land and | Vehicles, plant
buildings and equipment buildings | and equipment
£ £ £ £
Minimum lease rentals payable:
No later than 1 year i QO 4] 0
Later than 1 year and ro later Lhan 5 0 0 0 0
years
Later than § ysars 4] 0 4] 1}
[ i 0
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Operating Income and Expenditure (Continued)

Employee Costs and Members’ Allowances

Staff Costs
2010/11 2009/10
£ £
Salaries and wages 50,501 53,978
Employers National Insurance 7,096 3,395
Emplovers pension costs 3,731 8,637
61,328 66,010

In addition, agency costs during the year amounted to £0 {2009/10 £0).

The Joint Committee's current contribution rate to the NILGOSC Pension Fund
is 17%. At the last actuarial valeation, dated 31 March 2007, the Fund's
assets as a whole were sufficient to meet 89% (2004: 85%) of the liabilities

accrued up to that date.

Average Number of Employees - where FTE represents fulltime equivalent

employees
2010/11 2009/10
FTE FTE
Environmental services 0 0
Leisure services 0 0
Other 2.2 2.2
2.2 2.2

Actual Numbers

Actual Numbers

Fuil-time numbers employed

2

Part-time numbers employed

1

3

There is also an employee of the Strategic Investment Board who has heen
seconded to the Group to work on the Contracts that are currently being put in
place, His costs are not recharged to the Group by the S.1.B.
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Senior Employees’ Remuneration

2010/11 200910

£ £

£60,001 to £60,000 0 0
£60,001 to £70,000 0 0
£70,001 to £80,000 0 0
£80,001 to £90,000 0 0
0 0

Members’ Allowances

During the year Members’ allowances (paid under Sections 12 and 36 of the
Local Government Act (NI} 1972), including Empiayer's costs, totalled £0

(2009/10 £0) and are as follows:

2010111 2009/10

£ £

Salaries 0 0
Basic allowance 0 0
Dependents' carers allowance 0 0
Employer costs 0 0
Mileage 0 0
Conferences and Courses 0 0
Travel Costs 0 0
Subsistence 0 0
Special responsibility allowances 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 0
Travel 0 0
0 0
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Other Operating Income and Expenditure

2010/11 2009/10

£ £

Surplus/Deficit on Mon-Current Assels 0 0

Olher Operaling Income 0 0
QOther Operating Expenditure 0

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

[ 2010/11 2009110 |
Gross Gross Income Net Cost Gross Gross Net Cost
Expenditure Expenditure Income

E £ £ £ £

Interest Payable and Similar Charges J 0] 0 1] ] [i]

[interest and Investment Income 0 0 0 0 0
Pensions interesl cost and expected

relurn on pensions assels 0 [¢] 0 1] i}

Surplus/{Deficit) on trading operations 0 0 0 0 0
Changes in Fair Value of Investment

Properlies 0 0 0 0 0

|Olher investment income 0 0 0 0 0

] 0 0 0 [} [4

40



NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Government Grants

2010111 2009/10

£ £

Revenue Grants 739,818 615,544
Capital Grants and Contributions 0 0

Government Grants 739,818 615,544
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10c.

NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Non Current Assets - Leased Assets
At 31 March 2011

LEASED ASSETS (included within vehicles, plant and
equipment

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2010
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2011

Depreciation

Af 1 April 2010
Disposals
Provided for year

Al 31 March 2011

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2011
At 31 March 2010

Vehicles
£

Equipment
£

TOTAL

oo oo

oo o O

oo oo

Q| O D

ol oo

LIoo 0

(=]

(=]

<

Comparative Year

LEASED ASSETS [included within vehicles, plant and
eguipment

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2009
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2010

Depreciation

Al 1 April 2009
Disposals
Provided for year
At 31 March 2010

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2010
At 31 March 2009

-

Vehicles
£

Equipment
£

TOTAL

ol O D

(=l =]

oo o o

oo o O

oI O 9

oe o o

(=]

(=]

[=]
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Assets Held for Sale

At 31 March 2011 [Azeoty Mol far] Rakats Hold TOTAL
getalurremt | for Estadian-
current i
£ £

Cost ar Valuation

At 1 April 2010 0 0
Transferred from Nan-Cuerent
Assats dunng year Q o]

Revaluation Increases/decreases
taken to Surplus or Deficil on the

Provision of Services Q 0
Derecognilion - Disposals 4 0
Derecogrilion - Olher 0 0

Reclassdied from Current Assets
Held Tor Sale 1o non current Assels

Held for Sale 0 0
Translerred o Propery, Pianl &

Equipment during year 0 o
At 31 March 2011 [ 0
Impairmant

At 1 Apnl 2010 V] o]

Impairment losses/reversals laken
to Surplus or Deficil on the

Provision of Services 0 Q
Derecognition - Disposals [ s}
Derecognition - Other 0 0

Reclassified from Current Assels
Held for Sale (o non curenl Assels

Held for Sale 0 0
Transferred (o Propary, Planl &

Equipment during year 0 Q
At 31 March 2011 0 0

Net Book Value

=)
4

At 31 March 2011

At 31 March 2019 1) 2

The Joint Committee does nol have any Assels thal can be ¢lassed as hald for
sale.

Comparative Year

At 31 March 2010 Adnate Held for| Aests TOTAL
Balo-Cumromt | for Ealg-Non-
comest
3 £

Cost or Valuation

At 1 Apri} 2009 0 4]
Transferred from Nan-Current
Assets during year o} 0

Revaluation increases/decreases
taken to Surplus or Deficil on the

Provision of Services 0 0
Cerecognilien - Disposels 0 s}
Dergcognition - Olher 0 0]

Transferrad 1o Properly, Flanl &

Equipment during year 0 Q
At 31 March 2010 0 G
Impairment

Al 1 Apnl 2009 0 ol

Impairment losses/reversals laken
to Surplus or Deficil on the

Provision of Services 0| Q
Derecagnilion - Disposais o 1]
Derecegnition - Other 0 0
Transferred 1o Propeny, Plant &

Equipment during year 0 1]
At 31 March 2010 0 0

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2010 ] )]

Al 31 March 2009 0 )]
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

10e Investment Properties

The Joint Committee does not hold any Investment Properties.

2010/11 2009/10
£ £
Rental income from investment 0 0
roperty
Direct operating expenses arising 0 0
from investment property
Net gain/(loss) 0 0
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12

13

NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Capital Expenditure

Note 201011 2009410 2008/09
£ £ £
Expenditure
Capital expenditure 10a/10b 0 0 0
Financed By
Borrowings:
Loans 0 0 0
Finance ieases / hire purchase 0 0 0
Grants receivable 9 0 0 0
Capital receipts 25 0 Q 0
Transfer from Capital Fund 25 0 0 0
Transfer from Repairs and Renewals 25 0 0 0
Revenue contribulions to capital 3,25 o] 0 0
0 0 0
Surplus/{Deficit) 0 0 1]
Balance brought forward 0 0 0
Balance carried forward 0 0 0
Future Capital Commitments
The Joint Committee does not have any ongoing programme of capital works.
Gross Cost Grant Aid Net Cost
£ £ £
Schemes undermway 0 0 0
Other Commitments 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0
Inventories
2010/11 200910 2008/09
£ £ £
Central Stores 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0

Apart from some iterns of stationery and compuler consumables, which are charged to the Comprehensive

Income & Expenditure Account, the Joint Committee does notl carry any Stock.
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Debtors

2010/11

200910

2008/09

£

£

£

14a) Long Term Debtors

Governmeni Departrnents

Councils

Public corporations and trading funds

Grants

[ oans and advances

Trade receivables

Other

o|O|lo|0O|0|0|O

=l i=]l=]l=]l=] =] =

[s=][e]|=]){=][=][w][=]

Total Long-Term Debtors

L 4b) Short Term Debtors

I

Government Departments

372,618

426,887

297,750

Councils

20,791

15,184

15,348

Public corporations and trading funds

Grants

Value Added Tax

Prepayments

Cther

Trade receivables

Impairment loss - Trade receivables

[o g fow i fun'l fome ) oo} o [ ]

(o] [=] (=] (=] [o] [o] [=]

[=]i=]i=]i=][~] =] =]

Lotal Short-Term Debtors

393,409

442,071

313,099

Total Debtors

393,409

442,071

313,099
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

15a Long-Term lnvestments

15b

201011 2009/10 2008/09
£ £ £
Investments - general 0 0 0
Invesiments - repairs and renewals 0 0 0
Investments - capital fund 0 0 0
Investments - other 0 Q 0
Total Long-term Investments 0 0 0
Analysed over:
201011 2009/10 2009140
£ £ £
Moneay market deposits 0 0 0
Other deposits 0 0 0
Total lLong-term Investments 0 0 i}
Short-Term Investments
2010/11 2009/10 2008/09]
£ £ £
Investmenls - general 0 0 0
Investments - repairs and renewals 0 0 0
Invesiments - capital fund 0 0 0
Investmenls - other 0 8] 0
Total Short-term Investments 1 0 0
Analysed over:
2010/11 2009/10 2008/09
£ £ £
Money market deposits 0 Q 0
Other deposits 0 0 0
Total Short-term Investments 0 0 0
Total Long Term and Short-term Investments 0 0 o

49



16 a

16 b

17 a

17 b

NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Short Term Borrowing

2010111 2009/10 2008/09
£ £ £
Loans re-payable within one year 0 0 0
Finance Lease Principal 0] 0 0
Total Short Term Borrowing 0 0 0
Long Term Borrowing
2010/11 2009/10 2008/09
£ £ £
Between 1 and 2 years 0 0 0
Between 2 and 5 years 0 0 0
Between 5 and 10 years &) 0 0
In more than 10 years 0 0 0
Government Loans Fund 0 0 0
Total Borrowing [ 0 0 0]
Short Term Creditors
201011 2009/10 2008/09
£ £ £
Government Departments G 0 0
Councils 270,901 354,128 165,304
Public corporations and trading funds 0 0 0
Rermuneration due to employees 0 0 0
Accumulated Absences 0 0 0
Receipts in advance C ¢ 0
Trade creditors 122,508 87,343 147,795
Other 0 0 0
Total Short Term Creditors 393,409 442,071 313,009
Long Term Creditors
2010/11 2009/10 2008/09
£ £ £
Other creditors falling due after more than
one year
Government Departments 0 0 0
Councils 0 0 0
Public corporations and frading funds 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0
Total Long Term Creditors 0 0 0
Total Creditors 393,409 442,071 313,099
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Provisions

The Joint Committee does not have any provisions.

1

£ £ £ £ £
0 0 ] 0 0
¢ 0 0 0 0
Current Provisions 0 0 0 0 0
Long Term Provisions 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
Comparative Year
£ £ £ £ £
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
Current Provisions 0 0 0 0
Long Term Provisions 0 0 0 0
0 0 1] 0 0
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Financial Instruments
The Joint Committee has no material expasure to any of the risk types identified
Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to the Joint Committee’s customers. Customers are assessed, taking
into account their financial position, past experience and other factors, with individual
credit limits being set in accordance with internal ratings in accerdance with
parameters set by the Joint Committee. The provision for bad and doubtful debts
reflects the Joint Committee’s assessment of the risk of non-payment by trade
debtors and, as such, there is no further additional estimated exposure to default
and inability to collect.

Trade debtors, inclusive of VAT, can be analysed by age as follows:

£
Less than three months £0
Three to six months £0
Six months t{o one year £0
More than one year £0
£0

There is no historical experience of default in relation to deposits with banks and
other financial institutions. Therefore there is no estimated exposure to risk of
default.

Liquidity Risk

As the Joint Committee has ready access to borrowings from the Department of
Finance and Personnel’'s Consolidated Fund, there is no significant risk that it will be
unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under Financial Instruments. The
maturity analysis of financial liabilities is included in notes 16 to 18. All trade and
other payables are due for payment within one year.

Market Risk
Interest rate risk

The Joint Committee is not exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate
movements as it has no borrowings and investments.

Foreign exchange risk

The Joint Committee has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies and thus has no material exposure to foss arising from movements in
exchange rates.
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

20 Retirement Benefits

20.1 Participation in the NILGOSC Pension Fund

Employees of the Joint Committee are members of the NILGOSC Pension Fund. The scheme provides defined
benefits to members {retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Joint
Committee. Beacuse the Employees are employed by Derry City Council the scheme is effectively treated as a
Defined Contribution Scheme by the Joint Committee as the share of Pension Assets/Liabilties and Service
Costs/Gains is deemed to lie with Derry City Council.
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Donated Assets Account

Note 2010/11| 200910 2008/09
£ £ £
Qpening balance 0 0 0
Add: new donated assels received
{condition of use nol met) 0 0 0
Less: amounts released to General
Reserves - Comprehensive Income and
Expendilure Stalement {conditions met} 0 0 0
0 0 1]
Note 2010411 2009110 2008/09
£ £ £
Donated Assets Account
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 o]
0 0 0
Capital Grants Received in Advance
Note 2010111 2009/10| 2008/09
£ £ E
QOpening balance 0 0 0
Add: new capital granls received in
advance {condition of use not met) 0 0 0
Less: amounis released 1o the
Comprahensive (ncome and Expendilure
Stalement 4] 0 0
0 0 0
Note 2010/11| 2008M10| 2008H%
£ £ £
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance
0 Q 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0

Contingencies

The Joint Committee does nol have any Conlingencies
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit
for the year

Notes

Adjustment to surplus or deficit for noncash movements

Depreciation
Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale derecognitions)

{Increase)/Decrease in Stock

{Increase)/Decrease in Debtors

Increasef(decrease) in impairment prevision for bad debts

increasef{Decrease) in Creditors

Increase/(Decrease) in Interest Creditors

Carrying amount of non-current assels sold

WIP written off

Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions

Amounts posted to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Staternent from Donated Assets Account 22

Adjust for items incfuded in the net surplus or deficit that are
investing and financing activities

Purchase of short-lerm {not considered to be cash equivalenis) and
long-term investments (includes investments in associates, joint
ventures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from short-term (nol considered to be cash equivalents)
and long-term investments {includes investmenls in associates, joint
ventures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and intangible
assets

Capital grants included in "Government Grant” income

55

2010/11 2009/10
£

0 0

0 0

0 0

48 662 (128,972)
0 0
(48,662) 128,972
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0




NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

24h Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpeses of lhe cash fiow slalement. cash and cash equrvalents mclude cash on hand and in bank and shorl term deposils
and invesiments (considerad to be cash equivalents), nal of oulstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents al the end of
the reporing pencd as shown m the statement of cash Novs can be reconciled to the refated ilems in the Balance Sheel as follows:

31/03{2011 3032010 31/03/2008
£

£ [3
Cash and Bank balances 0 0 0
Shorl Term inveslmenis (considerad to be Cash
Equivalents) 0 0 o]
Shorl Term Deposils {(considered (o be Cash Eguivalenls) o 0 o
Bank Overdrah 0 0 Q
0 0 0

24c Cash Flow Statement-Operating Activities
2010111 2009410
£ £

The cash flows from operaling activities include:

Inlerest received o 0

Interest paid 0 Q

24d Cash flows from Investing Activities

2010/11 2009/10
£ E

Purchase of PP&E, invesiment properly and intangible
assels

Purchase of Shorl Term Investmenls (not considered
lo be cash equivalents)

Purchase of Long Term Invesiments

Other Payments for Investing Activities

Proceeds from Lhe sale of PP&E, investment properly
and intangible assels

Proceeds from Shorl Term Invesiments {nol
considered to be cash equivalenls)

Proceeds from Long Term lnvestmenls
Capilal Granls and Conlribulions Received

0 4]
o 0
] 0
0 4]
0 1]
4] 1)
¥ 0
0 4]
Qther Receipts from Investing Activities o} 4]
Net Cash flows from Invasting Aclivities 0 9

2010/11 2008/10
£ E

24e Cash flows from Financing Activities

Cash Receipls from Short and Long Tarm Borrowing 0
Other Receipts from Financing Activities 0 o]

Cash payments for the reduction af the outstanding
liability relating 1o a finance lease and on-Balance
Sheel PFI contracts 1] 0

Repaymenl of Short and Long Term Borrowing 0 o]

Olher payments for Financing Aclivilies 1] 1]

Met Cash flows from Finaneing Activities 0 0
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26a)

26b)

26¢)

26d)

26e)

26f)

NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements

Usable Reserves
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Capital Receipts Reserve

These are capital receipts which have originated primarily from the sale of assets
which have not yet been used lo finance capital expenditure.

The Capital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales
and other monies defined by statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain/loss on
disposal and posted out via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital
Receipts Reserve. The reserve is written down when resources are applied to
finance new capital expenditure or set aside to reduce an authority's capital
financing requirement (or used for other purposes permitted by statute.

Capital Grants Unapplied account

Where a capital grant or contribution (or part thereof) has been recognised as
income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but the
expenditure to be financed from that grant or contribution has not been incurred at
the Balance Sheet date, the grant or contribution shall be transferred to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Account {within the usable reserves section of {he balance sheet),
reflecting its status as a capital resource availabie to finance expenditure. This
transfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

When, at a future date, the expenditure to be financed from the grant or contribution
is incurred, the grant or contribution (or part thereof) shail be transferred from the
Capital Grants Unapplied Account to the Capital Adjustment Account, reflecting the
application of capital resources to finance expenditure. This transfer is also reported
in the Maovement in Reserves Statement or in the notes to the accounts.

Capital Fund

The Joint Committee has not established a Capital Fund.

Renewal and Repairs Fund

The Joint Committee has not established a Repairs and Renewals Fund. Fund.

Other Balances & Reserves

The Joint Committee does not have any other Balances or Reserves.

General Reserves

This reserve shows the accumulated resources which have not been assignedto a
special purpose reserve and are therefore available to meet general future
expenditure requirements. 1t is credited with income received less the accounting
cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices.
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements

Unusable Reserves

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the
different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for
the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postings from the Revaluation
Reserve to convert fair value figures to an historic cost basis.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and
gains recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Joint
Committee.

The Account alse contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and
Equipment before 1 April 2008, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to
hold such gains.

The purpose of this account is to aggregate the amount of capital expenditure that has
been financed from revenue and capitat receipts excluding sums received in respect of
loans negotiated to finance capital investment. This account is debited or credited with
the adjustment made in the General Reserves for principal debt repaid less than or in
excess of the provision for depreciation already debited to revenue and credited against
fixed assets, to adjust the provision in line with statutory requirements. The account is
also debited with an amount equal to the carrying amount of assets held at historic cost
when they are disposed of. If the asset disposed of was held at current value, the
balance held on the Revaluation Reserve is written off to the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Joint Committee has no transactions that would reguire use of this account.

Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Joint Committee arising from
increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The
reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or

- disposed of and the gains are realised,

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the date
the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated
into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.
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The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on the revaluation (upwards
or downwards) of individual assets. All such revaluations (excluding impairment losses
that have been debited to Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) are mirrored in Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. It is a fundamental principle of this account
that it never becomes negative. If an asset was held at current value when
derecognised, the balance held on the Revaluation Reserve is written off to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Available-for-Sale Financial Instruments Adjustment Reserve

The Joint Committee has no transactions that would require the use of this
Reserve,

Pension Reserve

Refer to note 20,

Deferred Capital Receipts Account

The Deferred Capital Receipts Account records capital advances receivable where an
amount equal to the advance is included as a deferred capital receipt. These amounts
are written down each year by the amount of capital debt repaid to the Joint Committee
in that year.

Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise
on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement from accruing for
compensated absences earned but not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave
entitflement carried forward at the end of the financial year. Statutory arrangements are
in ptace to ensure that the impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is neutralised by transfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account

Because the staff charged to the North West Region Waste Management Group are
employed by Derry City Council, the liability for any Accumulated Absences is
accounted for by the Council.
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NORTH WEST REGION

WASTE MANAGEMENT

GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Significant Trading Operations

The Joint Committee considers a trading operation exists where the service it provides is competitive i.e. the
user always has the cheice to use an alternative supplier to the Joint Commitiee and the Joint Committee
charges the user on a basis other than a straightforward recharge of the Joint Committee's costs in supplying
the service.

In deciding whether a trading operation is significant the Joint Committee takes both financial and non-
financial criteria into account.

Financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Joint
Committee are:

- the magnitude of each individual trading operation's turnover when greater than 10% of the Joint
Committee's net revenue budget

- the risk of financial loss the Joint Committee may be exposed to in providing the service to the user.

Non-financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Joint
Committee are:

- the importance of each individual trading operation to demonstrating the achievement of Joint Committee
targets and improving performance.

- the exposure of the Joint Committee to service reputational loss risk by providing the service

- whether the provision of the service is likely to be of interest to the Joint Committee's key stakeholders and
their needs.

in applying the aforementioned criteria, the Joint Committee considers that it is not engaging in any significant
trading operations.
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MIANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Agency Services

The Joint Committee does not engage in any Agency Services.
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Related Party Transactions

A Relaled Party Transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between related
parties, regardless of whether a price is charged. Related Party Transactions exclude
transactions with any other enfity that is a related parly solely because of its economic
dependence on the Joint Committee or the Government of which it forms part. A related
party is cne that has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operaling decisions. This includes cases
where the related party entity and another entity are subject to commeon contro! but
excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Joint
Committee and Trade Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the Joint
Committee. In addition where the relationship with the Joint Committee and the entity is
solely that of an Agency {see note 28) these are not deemed to be Related Party
Transactions.

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial staternents
are set out below, where a descriplion of the nature, the amount of the transaction and
the amount of the outstanding balance is as follows;

Counciflors have direct control over the Joint Committee's financial and operating ploicies.
In the financial year 2010/2011 the Joint Committee did not commission any works from
companigs in which Councillors had an interest.

The Joint Committee provides administration support to the seven participant councils in
relation to the procurement and management of waste related contracts, During 2010/11
the Joint Committee reporied income of £88,412 {2009/10 £83,322) from member
Councits, of which £20,791 (2009/10 £15,184) was outstanding as al 31 March 2011. No
expenditure was made to member Councils (2009/10 £0). As the Joint Committee uses
Derry City Council to cashflow it's activities there was a balance owed to the Council at 31
March 2011 of £270,901 in relation to 2010/11 (2009/10 £354,128.

The income from participating Councils is as shown below:

2010/2011 2009/2010
£ £

Derry City Council 29,441 27,748
Coleraine Borough Council 15,472 14,581
Magherafelt District Council 11,317 10,665
Strabane District Council 10,698 10,082
Limavady Borough Council 9,283 8,749
Ballymoney District Council 7,692 7,249
Moyle District Council 4,509 4,250

88,412 83,322

The Joint Committee also receives grant funding from the Department of the Environment
for costs involved with the waste management procurement process. During 2010/2011
this amounted to £739,818 (2009/2010 £615,544)

Derry City Council provides office accomodation and support services to the Joint
Committee for which it received £15,000 during 2010/2011 (2009/2010 £15,000). The
Council's City Secretary & Sclicitor also provided specialist legal advice lo the Joint
Committee for which a charge of £11,480 was made during 2010/2011 (2009/2010 Enil).
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30.4

NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

First-time adoption of IFRS

These are the Joint Committee's first financial slatemenis prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). The date of iransition lo !FRS is 1 April 2008

The Joint Committee's IFRS accounting policies presented in Nole 1 have been applied in preparing the
financial statements lor the year ended 31 March 2011, the comparalive information and the opening statement
of financial position at the date of transition.

The Joint Committee has applied the \FRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporing Standards
in preparing these first IFRS compliant financial statements, excepl in cases where interpretations or
adaplations to fit the public seclor, have been prescribed by the Code of Praclice on Local Authority Accounting
(The Code). Malerial differences between ameounis presented under the SORP 2009 and the IFRS-based Code
are explained below,

Post Employment Benefits

Because the staff working for the Joint Committee are employees of Derry City Council there are no Pension
liahilities for the Norh West Region Waste Management Group as the liabiiity is deemed 1o rest with Derry City
Council.

Capital Grants

Under the Code, granis and conlribulions for capital schemes are recognised as income when they become
receivable. Previously, grants were held in a granls deferred account and recognised as income over the life of
the assets which they were used (o fund

There are no changes to the Accounts for Capital Grants as the Jeint Committee has not received any Capital
Granlts.

Short Term Accumulating Absences

Because the stafl working for the Joint Committee are employees of Derry City Council there are no
Acculmulated Absences for the Norlh West Region Waste Management Group as the liability is deemed to rest
with Derry City Council.

Leases

Under the Code, leases of properly are accounted for as separate leases of land and buildings. Previously,
each properly lease would have been accounled for as a single lease. The change in accounting treatment can
result in the Jand or buildings elemeni of the iease being accounted for as an operaling lease where it was
previously treated as a finance lease; or as a finance lease where it was previously freated as an operating
lease.

The Joint Committee does not have any Leases.
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30.5 Summary of Adjustments

The feliowing recenciliations indicale the malerial adjustments between amounts presented under the SORP
and the equivalent amounts under the IFRS-based Code.

30.5{i) Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2010

£
UK GAAP based Total Comprehensive Income and
Expendilure 0
Adjustments in respect of Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
(Note 30.1) 0
Adjustments in respect of Government Grants Deferred {Note
30.2) 0
Adjustments in respect of Shert Term Accumulating Absences T
(Nole 30.3) 0
Adjustments in respect of Leases (Note 30.4) 0
Other Adjustments 0
Restated Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0

30.5(ii) Reconciliation of Total Reserves (Net Worth} as at 31 March 2009
| £
|Reserves under UK GAAP as at 31 March 2009 0
Adjustments in respect of Defined Senefit Pension Scheme
(Note 30.1) o}
Adjustments in respect of Government Grants Deferred (Nole
30.2) 0
Adjustments in respect of Short Term Accumulating Absences
(Note 30.3) 0
Adjustmenis in respect of Leases (Note 30.4) 0
Other Adjusiments 0
Reslaled Reserves as at 1 April 2009 0
30.5(iil}) Reconclliation of Total Reserves (Net Worth) as at 31 March 2010

E
Reserves under UK GAAP as at 31 March 2010 0
Adjusiments in respect of Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
(Note 30.1) 0
Adjustments in respect of Government Grants Deferred (Note
30.2) 0
Adjustments in respect of Short Term Accumulating Absences
{Note 30.3) 0
Adjustments in respect of Leases {Nole 30.4) 0
Other Adjustments 0
Reslated Reserves as al 31 March 2010 0
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NORTH WEST REGION WASTE MANAGEMENT GROUP
Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Accounts Authorised for Issue Certificate

In accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS 10) this Statement of
Accounts which contains a number of minor amendments from the Accounts
approved on 27th June 2011 are at today’s date hereby authorised for issue.

IAS 10 sets out

. The period during which an entity should adjust its financial statements for
events after the balance sheet date as being the period between the date
the financial statements were prepared and the date of this authorisation;

) In the event of adjustments the disclosures that should be made.

q,
n o
[

Signed e d
Chief Figancial Officer
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